
TOWN OF CEDAR LAKE, LAKE COUNTY, IN DIANA 
MEMORANDA & MINUTES OF THE CEDAR LAKE TOWN COUNCIL  

 

July 7, 2009  Page 1 of 6 

July 7, 2009  
Public Meeting 7:00 PM at the Cedar Lake Town Hall  

Pledge of Allegiance & Moment of Silence  
Roll Call:  
Absent John Foreman 

Council Member 

Ward 2 Present Robert Carnahan           Ward 1 
Vice President 

Present Patricia Wisniewski 
Council Member 

Ward 3 Present Dennis Wilkening           Ward 5 
President 

Present Jerry Smith 
Council Member 

Ward 4 Present 
 

Amy J. Sund 
Clerk-Treasurer 

Present William Landske 
Council Member 

Ward 6 Present Ian Nicolini 
Town Administrator 

Absent* Greg Parker 
Council Member 

Ward 7 Absent* David Austgen 
Town Attorney 

*David Austgen arrived at 7:10 pm and Greg Parker arrived at 7:20 pm 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
Police:  Chief Roger Patz reported on the fireworks law and the calls received and their responses 
and citations that were issued.  Law enforcement is at a disadvantage with fireworks.  Chief Patz 
requested help from council in lobbying for changes and tougher fireworks laws.  Bill Landske 
commented on people using large diameter tubes in the ground; that is big stuff.  Chief Patz reported 
that would be evidence and there is a case of this right now in Cedar Lake.  Chief Patz stated that we 
will be talking to the prosecutor on criminal charges on this individual; discussions occurred on the 
resident in Cedar Point Park and the fireworks that have occurred for two years.   Denny Wilkening 
reported on fireworks statistics regarding death and injuries.  Bob Carnahan stated that if people want 
more shows, donate the money and we will have more shows down here on the lake.  Chief Patz and 
Denny Wilkening stated that large displays need permits.  The town has a noise ordinance that could 
be enforced as well as the law.  Chief Patz suggested meeting with the town attorney to discuss 
having a stricter ordinance for the town regarding fireworks.         
 
Public Works:  Ed Robinson had no report.   
 
Parks & Recreation:   A written report was submitted to Council.   
 
Clerk -Treasurer:  Amy Sund stated that the Muscular Dystrophy Association has requested a tag day 
of July 25

th
 with a rain date of August 1

st
; the dates are available.  Motion by Jerry Smith and 

seconded by Bill Landske to approve the tag date. 
Roll Call Vote: 5 to 0       

Foreman Wisniewski Smith Landske Parker Carnahan Wilkening 
ABSENT YES YES YES ABSENT YES YES 

Amy Sund stated that the Census has requested use of the meeting room and community center in 
August or sometime after; they currently do not have an exact date.  Motion by Bob Carnahan and 
seconded by Jerry Smith to allow the use of the facilities by the census.   
Roll Call Vote: 5 to 0       

Foreman Wisniewski Smith Landske Parker Carnahan Wilkening 
ABSENT YES YES YES ABSENT YES YES 

Amy Sund stated that there has been a delay in sending out the utility bills as this is the first time with 
the water utility billing.  There are approximately 800 water utility customers and bills are being 
checked for accuracy.  The bills will be out by the end of the week.  Greg Parker inquired on late fees; 
Amy Sund responded that we will probably not impose penalties for this month.  Amy Sund stated 
that we received our budget approval from the state.  There are some adjustments that need to be 
made.  The revenue for the general budget was overstated as the boom of growth has not occurred 
due to the state of the economy.  Local Roads & Streets and Motor Vehicle Highway will need to be 
adjusted as well; Amy Sund is working with the state on this and should hear back from them soon.      
 
Fire Department: There was no report.  
 
Town Administrator:  Ian Nicolini reported that there were thirteen new home permits and fifty-nine 
alteration permits last month.  Job descriptions are about ninety percent complete; they will be 
distributed to the department heads for review.  These are expected to be completed within the next 
six to eight weeks.  We have met several times in Wicker Meadows and we are working with the 
developer to determine the blockage in the field tiles that are tied into our structure.  The area has 
been hydro seeded, erosion control blankets are in place and a trash rack and rock dam are to be 
installed to try to filter some of the solids as we work through this process.  Ian Nicolini addressed 
Bob Carnahan and Pat Wisniewski regarding the ecosystem restoration committee; the draft has 
been received and a meeting will be set at the next Council meeting.   
 
Town Attorney:  David Austgen reported that the Redevelopment Commission, with Bob Carnahan 
as liaison, met last evening; they are working on end financing of current temporary financing that is 
about to expire and be due August 1

st
.   Our financial advisors are working on this with the county.   

Bob Carnahan stated that he will copy all on resolutions with this.  In regards to the water utility, a 
large kudos to Amy Sund and her staff; they have had an incredibly intense period of time with the 
billing and the process; also, Ed Robinson and his staff in integrating the work into their routine.  
David Austgen stated that he has a number of items for executive session.         
 
Town Council : Bob Carnahan received information from the Lionôs Club.  They are having their golf 
outing fund raiser on August 2

nd
; they are asking the Town Council to donate $25 each.  Bob 



TOWN OF CEDAR LAKE, LAKE COUNTY, IN DIANA 
MEMORANDA & MINUTES OF THE CEDAR LAKE TOWN COUNCIL  

 

July 7, 2009  Page 2 of 6 

Carnahan reported on the work they do.  Pat Wisniewski stated that there were over 1,000 people at 
the orchestra and it was a wonderful event.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  George Vukmirovich of the Redevelopment Commission invited all to the 
ribbon cutting ceremony for the 133

rd
 Project; the date is tomorrow at 6 pm.  Terry Jamrock  of 134

th
 

Place reported for her neighbor Chris Salberg of 134
th
 Place; Chris Salberg has submitted a letter to 

Council regarding fireworks in their neighborhood.  Bill Landske stated that he has the letter and 
pictures; pictures were reviewed by Council.  Terry Jamrock reported that 25 Purple Martin baby birds 
died because of the fireworks.  Denny Wilkening questioned if this was Cedar Point Park; Terry 
Jamrock responded yes.  Bill Landske read the letter that was submitted by Chris Salberg to the 
Town Council.  A copy of the letter is attached at the end of the minutes.  David Austgen suggested to 
Denny Wilkening to direct the Chief of Police and the Town Administrator to investigate the 
circumstances reported in this letter and to report to you and the town attorney the findings that may 
be criminal or ordinance violations.  Dennis Wilkening inquired of David Austgen if we could just have 
no fireworks period; David Austgen stated that state law does not permit this.  David Austgen stated 
that you have town ordinances and permits are required for commercial grade fireworks.  David 
Austgen stated that many things were identified in the letter and facts need to be investigated.  
Sandra Dalkilic  of RBB Realty on Lake Shore Drive stated that the town administrator contacted her 
by telephone to meet and discuss giving an easement to the town for storm water improvements.  
Nancy  Bilo , the owner of Personal Touch, was in attendance at this meeting as well.  Sandra Dalkilic 
stated that they are not completely happy with this arrangement.  This will have a very deleterious 
effect on their property values.  She stated that, in the initial meeting, the document that was 
prepared by David Austgen asked for a five foot permanent easement on our properties.  She stated 
that to take five feet off of property that has been paid for, maintained and taxes are paid on can not 
be easily understood.  In addition, she has received a letter from an engineer asking for a seven foot 
easement.  She stated that there was not a firm timetable from the town regarding when it will be dug 
and how long it will take; even though there were assured access to their property would be made.   
She stated that more definite guidelines are needed; for her company to survive.  Sandra Dalkilic 
stated that she has seen what happened to businesses on 133

rd
; some of them did not make it.  She 

would like the opportunity to discuss this and consider other options such as a temporary easement 
rather than giving up their property.  Ian Nicolini stated that the easement has been revised to access 
the property for repaving the area. This stretches across the parking lot and in front of the building.  
The timetable was an issue at the time because we did not have the contract.  The meetings and 
requests were preliminary with a response of the 20

th
.  Ian Nicolini stated that when he met with 

Nancy and Jim; they discussed the possibility of a temporary easement to resurface the driveway and 
parking areas and then doing a permanent easement around the structures which currently protrude 
into the right of way.  Jim Bilo  of Lake Shore Drive, owner of Personal Touch, stated that there is 
uncertainty in the way the contract is written, it does not protect them.  David Austgen stated that the 
easement was drafted with the legal descriptions submitted by the engineer for the scope of the 
project.  Ian Nicolini met with property owners to discuss voluntary participation and to receive 
preliminary feedback.  The project was related for storm improvement and road improvements.  
Easements were discussed in regards to maintenance and ownership.   David Austgen stated that 
the design for the road improvement project is available for view.  Nancy Bilo stated that she has 
contacted her attorney and has been instructed not to sign anything.  She stated that the way it was 
worded allows anything for the first five feet of the property; the problem is the way it is worded.  
Resale of the property was discussed and their rights.  David Austgen stated that if the property is 
disturbed; it needs to be put back into the condition it was in prior to work.  David Austgen stated to 
have her attorney send a draft to them.  Plan timetables were discussed and accessibility limitations.  
Ian Nicolini stated that all disturbed areas need to be backfilled and repaved.  Nancy stated that the 
ñtemporaryò part is not defined, that is the problem.   Bob Carnahan inquired if we can work with them 
and their business.  Denny Wilkening stated that it is a shallow pipe.  Nancy stated that it is the ñwhat-
ifsò that worry her.  Ian Nicolini stated that once he has a schedule, he will share it with property 
owners.  Ian Nicolini stated that he does not want to put anyone out of business; we are trying to 
make improvements and keep owners informed.  Ian Nicolini stated that he was asking for initial 
feedback and once he has more information he will inform them.  Jim Bilo stated that they will have 
their attorney review the contract.           
        
CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Minutes of the Regular Public Meeting of June 16, 2009. 
2. Docket: Town Claims 65021 - 65141 for $1,201,109.80; Wastewater Claims 25074 - 25107 for 

$99,922.82; Storm Water Claims 65028 ï 65029 and 65049 - 65062, for $73,045.08; and Water 
Utility Claims 80009 - 80018, for $5,622.57.  Motion by Jerry Smith and seconded by Pat 
Wisniewski to accept and waive the reading of the minutes and to accept the consent agenda.   
Roll Call Vote: 6 to 0       

Foreman Wisniewski Smith Landske Parker Carnahan Wilkening 
ABSENT YES YES YES YES YES YES 

 
PLANNING/ZONING & BZA BUSINESS  
1. Variance of Use  ï Allowing Three Business on One  Lot  

a. Vicinity: Former Rose RV Building on US 41  
b. BZA issued a favorable recommendation  
Ian Nicolini stated that the certification is in the meeting packet with a stipulation not to exceed 
thirty-eight months.  Greg Parker questioned what the contingency is for; Ian Nicolini stated that 
this is the term of their lease.  If the lease is extended they will need to go back to the BZA.  Bill 
Landske questioned the size of the lot is 300 ï 400; Ian Nicolini stated that without a survey in 
front of him he could not be sure.    Motion by Jerry Smith and seconded by Pat Wisniewski 
based upon the recommendation of the BZA to allow three businesses on one zoning lot, and to 



TOWN OF CEDAR LAKE, LAKE COUNTY, IN DIANA 
MEMORANDA & MINUTES OF THE CEDAR LAKE TOWN COUNCIL  

 

July 7, 2009  Page 3 of 6 

allow automobile painting, and to allow automobile repair and to allow body and fender works in 
Community Business (B-2) Zoning District for a period not to exceed thirty-eight months, 
contingent upon petitioner following all State and Federal regulations regarding automobile 
painting and automobile body and fender works business and that if any state or federal 
regulations are violated the favorable recommendation is revoked immediately.  The motion is 
based upon a five to zero recommendation from the BZA.   Denny Wilkening questioned that they 
are going to do body work and painting; Ian Nicolini responded yes.  Bill Landske stated that 
painting regulations are strict.     
 Roll Call Vote: 6 to 0       

Foreman Wisniewski Smith Landske Parker Carnahan Wilkening 
ABSENT YES YES YES YES YES YES 

 
2. Special Use Exemption ï Allowing and Automotive Service Cent er in B -2 

a. Vicinity: Former Rose RV Building on US 41  
b. BZA issued a favorable recommendation  
Ian Nicolini stated that the certification is in the meeting packet.  There was a favorable 
recommendation of 5 to 0 from the BZA. Motion by Bob Carnahan and seconded by Jerry Smith 
to allow an automobile service center and to allow the sales of new and used automobiles in a 
Community Business (B-2) Zoning District which had a 5 to 0 favorable recommendation from the 
BZA. 
Roll Call Vote: 6 to 0       

Foreman Wisniewski Smith Landske Parker Carnahan Wilkening 
ABSENT YES YES YES YES YES YES 

 
3. Variance of Use ï Allowing Outdoor Consumption of Food and Alcoholic Beverages  

a. Lighthouse Restaurant  
b. BZA issued a favorable recommendation with conditions  
Ian Nicolini stated that there are conditions regarding this.  Ian Nicolini read that the BZA sends a 
favorable recommendation to the Town Council for the requested Variance of Use to allow 
outdoor dining and consumption of alcohol beverages at the outdoor dining contingent upon a 
railing being installed according to State and Federal applicable regulation prior to the use of the 
proposed outdoor dining, in a Neighborhood Business (B-1) Zoning District; the favorable vote 
was 5 to 0.  Motion by Pat Wisniewski and seconded by Jerry Smith.  Pat Wisniewski stated that 
there currently is a railing around there.     
Roll Call Vote: 6 to 0       

Foreman Wisniewski Smith Landske Parker Carnahan Wilkening 
ABSENT YES YES YES YES YES YES 

 
UTILITY BUSINESS 
1. Equipment Lease Approval  

Amy Sund stated that she received proposals for the financing of the crane truck and the mini 
excavator.  Amy Sund recommended National City, PNC; they are the lowest for the interest rate.  
Amy Sund suggested a six-year term with semi-annual payments.  Amy Sund stated that the 
truck will be primarily wastewater; the mini excavator would be storm water and waste water.  
David Austgen inquired on the documentation on the proposals; Amy Sund stated that she will 
not receive those until after the fact.  Motion by Jerry Smith and seconded by Greg Parker to 
accept the bid with a six-year term.  Denny Wilkening questioned the truck; Ed Robinson stated 
that it will be a snowplow, four-wheel drive Chevy Silverado 4500 series.  Denny Wilkening 
questioned if this will be used for snowplowing; Ed Robinson stated yes.   
Roll Call Vote: 6 to 0       

Foreman Wisniewski Smith Landske Parker Carnahan Wilkening 
ABSENT YES YES YES YES YES YES 

 
TOWN BUSINESS 
1. Resolutions  

a. Resolution No. 985  Transferring Funds   
Ian Nicolini read Resolution No. 985 in its entirety which authorizes the transferring of funds 
from the general fund, police, $1600.00 from445 equipment to 131 Uniforms.  Motion by Bob 
Carnahan and seconded by Jerry Smith to amend the agenda to include Resolution No. 985.   
Roll Call Vote: 6 to 0       

Foreman Wisniewski Smith Landske Parker Carnahan Wilkening 
ABSENT YES YES YES YES YES YES 

Motion by Pat Wisniewski and seconded by Jerry Smith to accept Resolution No. 985 as 
read. 
Roll Call Vote: 6 to 0       

Foreman Wisniewski Smith Landske Parker Carnahan Wilkening 
ABSENT YES YES YES YES YES YES 

 
b. Resolution No. 986 Authorizing a Temporary Loan  

Amy Sund read Resolution No. 986 in its entirety.  The sum of $82,000 shall be transferred 
from the RDC 133

rd
 and Wicker TIF Allocation Fund to the RDA Lease Rental Bond Fund in 

order to make timely payment to the paying agent Wells Fargo Bank for the 2007 Cedar Lake 
Redevelopment Authority Lease Rental Revenue Bonds.  This temporary loan shall be repaid 
to the proper fund upon full receipt of the 2008 pay 2009 tax installment.  Motion by Jerry 
Smith and seconded by Pat Wisniewski to accept Resolution No. 986 as read. 
Roll Call Vote: 6 to 0       



TOWN OF CEDAR LAKE, LAKE COUNTY, IN DIANA 
MEMORANDA & MINUTES OF THE CEDAR LAKE TOWN COUNCIL  

 

July 7, 2009  Page 4 of 6 

Foreman Wisniewski Smith Landske Parker Carnahan Wilkening 
ABSENT YES YES YES YES YES YES 

 
c. Resolutio n No. 987 Authorizing a Temporary Loan  

Amy Sund read Resolution No. 987 in its entirety.  The sum of $12,369.50 will be transferred 
from the Cumulative Capital Improvement Fund to the Park District Bond Fund.  The loan 
shall be repaid to the proper fund upon receipt of the 2008 pay 2009 installment anticipated 
for collection in 2009.  Motion by Jerry Smith and seconded by Pat Wisniewski to approve 
Resolution No. 987 as read.  Bob Carnahan questioned if this was the loan for North Park 
and the amount of time remaining; Amy Sund stated that it should be paid off in 2015. 
Roll Call Vote: 6 to 0       

Foreman Wisniewski Smith Landske Parker Carnahan Wilkening 
ABSENT YES YES YES YES YES YES 

 
2. Ordinances  

a. Ordinance No. 1055: Establishing a Court Reimbursement Polic y for Police Reserve 
Officers  

Motion by Jerry Smith and seconded by Bill Landske to read by title only with a brief description. 
Roll Call Vote: 5 to 1      

Foreman Wisniewski Smith Landske Parker Carnahan Wilkening 
ABSENT YES YES YES YES NO YES 

Amy Sund read Ordinance No. 1055 by title only.  Amy Sund summarized that when reserve 
officers go to court on behalf of the Town.  Years ago there was a stipulation in the salary 
ordinance and then it was taken out.  The current ordinance states that they may be 
compensated not will be.  This would be for $20 to be paid as a vendor; a w-9 would need to be 
completed and present to the Chief of Police prior to submitting it to the Clerk-Treasurers office 
for payment.  Motion by Bill Landske and seconded by Greg Parker.  Jerry Smith stated that 
these officers put a lot of hours in for the town without compensation.  Amy Sund stated that there 
is a stipulation in the ordinance to make it retroactive to the first of the year.   
Roll Call Vote: 6 to 0      

Foreman Wisniewski Smith Landske Parker Carnahan Wilkening 
ABSENT YES YES YES YES YES YES 

Amy Sund inquired if we could have a second reading tonight.  Motion by Jerry Smith and 
seconded by Pat Wisniewski to suspend the rules and have the second reading of Ordinance No. 
1055 by title only. 
Roll Call Vote: 6 to 0      

Foreman Wisniewski Smith Landske Parker Carnahan Wilkening 
ABSENT YES YES YES YES YES YES 

Amy Sund read Ordinance No. 1055 by title only.  Motion by Greg Parker and seconded by Bill 
Landske to accept the second reading of Ordinance No. 1055. 
Roll Call Vote: 6 to 0      

Foreman Wisniewski Smith Landske Parker Carnahan Wilkening 
ABSENT YES YES YES YES YES YES 

 
3. New Business  

a. Bid Opening ï West Lake Shore Drive, East Lake Shore Drive, & Huseman Street  
Ian Nicolini stated that there is a summary report from Christopher Burke Engineering. Ian Nicolini 
stated that the apparent low bidder is Reichelt Plumbing for $1,816,649.75; the next lowest bidder 
is Reith Riley Construction for $2,074,502.39, Walsh & Kelly for $2,128,199.05 and Hasse 
Construction for $2,588,000.00.  The low bid from Reichelt Plumbing was $355,603.25 below the 
engineers estimate and he recommended approving Reichelt Plumbingôs bid.  Motion by Bob 
Carnahan and seconded by Pat Wisniewski to award the bid to Reichelt Plumbing in the amount 
of $1,816,649.75.  David Austgen stated that this has been reviewed by the attorney.  Greg 
Parker inquired on the timeline.  Ian Nicolini stated that there is a four week closure period for the 
West Lake Shore Drive project; after that they will be subject to liquidated damages of $1,250 per 
day and before that there is a $5,000 a day early completion bonus not to exceed $25,000.  
Denny Wilkening inquired on the start date; Ian Nicolini stated that there is a pre-construction 
meeting next week and he will have more information after that.  Substantial completion is 
November 15

th
 with final completion to be December 15

th
.      

Roll Call Vote: 6 to 0       

Foreman Wisniewski Smith Landske Parker Carnahan Wilkening 
ABSENT YES YES YES YES YES YES 

 
b. Emergency Vehicle Preemption Device Installation at 133

rd
 and Parrish  

Ian Nicolini stated that this does not need to be an action item tonight, but he would like approval 
on the change order.  Ian Nicolini stated that about a year and a half ago the Council voted to 
approve a change order to look into the emergency vehicle preemption devices.  We have been 
waiting on the Federal Highways Administration to give us what they are willing to contribute; 
what we could purchase under our 80/20 contract; the number of units for vehicles.  We learned 
last week that the number is fifteen; which would cost the Town about $11,000.  Ian Nicolini 
stated that fifteen is probably not enough, but budgets will need to be looked at.  Ian Nicolini 
recommended approving the purchase of fifteen under the contract and directing the Police Chief 
and Fire Chief meet to discuss the allocation.  We had requested thirty-three units.  We will need 
to look at the budgets to purchase additional units.  David Austgen stated that perhaps having Ian 
Nicolini to look into this further and see if we can get more units.  Motion by Bob Carnahan and 
seconded by Jerry Smith to continue this to the next meeting.  David Austgen inquired if there is 



TOWN OF CEDAR LAKE, LAKE COUNTY, IN DIANA 
MEMORANDA & MINUTES OF THE CEDAR LAKE TOWN COUNCIL  

 

July 7, 2009  Page 5 of 6 

timeline for expending the funds; Ian Nicolini stated that this is the only item left for the completion 
of the project.  This extends the final completion date.  Ian Nicolini stated that these are about 
$3,700 per vehicle unit.  The octagon system has already been installed.  These are the 
transponders for the vehicles. 
Roll Call Vote: 5 to 1      

Foreman Wisniewski Smith Landske Parker Carnahan Wilkening 
ABSENT YES YES NO YES YES YES 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  
Chris Salberg  of 134

th
 Place said thank you for considering her concern.  Denny Wilkening stated 

that action will be taken.   
 
FINAL COMMENTS:   
1. Town C ouncil: Bob Carnahan stated that the garden walk and town wide garage sale will not 

take place due to Diane Jostes being out of commission.  Greg Parker requested a meeting with 
John Foreman, himself and the Town Administrator tomorrow and any other Council members at 
3:00 pm at the Town. Greg Parker needs the McFarland plan commission finalization before 
leaving this evening.   

2. Town Administrator : Ian Nicolini had no comment.   
3. Town Attorney : David Austgen stated he has items for executive session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: At approximately 8:35 pm President Wilkening called for adjournment. 
 
An Executive Session was advertised and conducted pursuant to IC 5-14-1.5-6.1(b) for 6:00 PM before the 
meeting with discussion consisting of discussion of a job performance evaluation of individual employees and for 
discussion of records classified as confidential. Those in attendance were Robert Carnahan, William Landske, 
Greg Parker, Jerry Smith, Dennis Wilkening, Pat Wisniewski, Town Administrator Ian Nicolini, and Clerk-
Treasurer Amy Sund. 

 
COUNCIL OF THE CIVIL TOWN OF CEDAR LAKE, LAKE COUNTY, INDIANA 

 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Dennis Wilkening, President, Ward 5 Patricia Wisniewski, Ward 3 

  

  
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Robert H. Carnahan, Vice President, Ward 1 John Foreman, Ward 2 

  
  
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Jerry Smith, Ward 4 William Landske, Ward 6 

  
  
ATTEST: __________________________________ 
 Greg Parker, Ward 7 

__________________________________  

Amy J. Sund, Clerk-Treasurer  
 
 
 
The minutes of the Cedar Lake Town Council are transcribed pursuant to IC 5-14-1.5-4(b) which states:  
(b) As the meeting progresses, the following memoranda shall be kept: 

(1) The date, time and place of the meeting. 
(2) The members of the governing body recorded as either present or absent. 
(3) The general substance of all matters proposed, discussed, or decided. 
(4) A record of all votes taken, by individual members if there is a roll call. 
(5) Any additional information required under IC 5-1.5-2-2.5. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF CEDAR LAKE, LAKE COUNTY, IN DIANA 
MEMORANDA & MINUTES OF THE CEDAR LAKE TOWN COUNCIL  

 

July 7, 2009  Page 6 of 6  


